Pantex Wind Farm Solicitation No. DE-SOL-0004018
Solicitation Documents, Data and Technical Library Questions
1.   Question:  The RFP incorporates by reference FAR 52.219-16, titled “Liquidated Damages – Subcontracting Plan (Jan 1999).”  What are the potential liquidated damages, if any, associated with a contractor’s failure to make a good faith effort to comply with its subcontracting plan, as specified in the clause?
Answer:  The clause states what it means to have a failure of a good faith effort.  It states that a willful or intentional failure to perform in accordance with the requirements of the subcontracting plan approved under the clause in this contract entitled, “Small Business Subtracting Plan” or willful or intentional action to frustrate the plan.  Liquidated Damages would be assessed if the Subtracting Plan is willfully or intentionally not performed.  
2 Question:   The Q&A says there is SODAR data for 2009 to August 2011 on the Skyserver website.  We only find hourly data up to 60 meters indicating that the data is for only the measurement tower.  If there is SODAR data on the Skyserver website please identify the location or provide the data separately if possible.

Answer: The data will be posted on the website

3 Question:  We have reviewed the data available through Skyserve.net and there appears to be some missing and possibly corrupted data.  Could the Government Please: 

a. Provide the missing July 2006 data for the 60 meter anemometer ?
 Answer:  The system was unavailable during this month due to system maintenance therefore the data is not available.

b. Verify if there is a transcription error for November and December 2007 data for the 60 meter anemometer? [The column headers for the 60 meter data are different from the 10 meter data which suggests a possible transcription error.]
Answer:  Headers were incorrect as well as the data (transcription error as noted) a revised 2007 wind table is posted to the website.

c. Provide, if it exists, the standard deviation data for wind speed.  This data helps with quantifying turbulence.   
      Answer:  The column in the tables titled “Sig Theta” it the standard deviation data
       


4.    Question:  Do the Corporate Experience Forms need to be included in Volume 2

Answer:  No, the solicitation states; “The Offeror is responsible for ensuring that the Corporate Experience Reference Information Form and the Past Performance Information Questionnaires are returned to the Contract Specialist prior to solicitation closing date.  Any forms received after the solicitation due date, will not be considered.”  

5.  Question:  Is the maintenance of access road & crane pad to be included in O&M Phase?  

Answer:   Yes

6.  Question:  Is erosion control maintenance to be included in O&M Phase?

Answer:   Yes

7.  Question:  Is a security fence required at wind turbine location post construction?

Answer:   No

8.  Question:  For purposes of selection, would the Government consider adding to the criteria mentioned on Page 4 of Section M under paragraph: NNS-M-1005  COST PROPOSAL EVALUATION CRITERIA  (JAN 2012) the following: Sum total of all contractor payments as provided on Task Order Schedule One (1) - total of columns (c) and (f). This will give you the true measure of project investment along with the original three criteria mentioned in the reference paragraph.  

Answer:  The Government will not change evaluation criteria.
9.  Question:  Per paragraph C.23.5 of Performance Work Statement (PWS) Utility Interrupt requests must be submitted 5 days prior to outage.  Per paragraph C.5.8 of PWS Utility Interrupt requests must be submitted 12 days prior to outage.  What is the requirement? 

Answer:  Please ensure you are looking at the PWS dated January 30, 2012.  Paragraph C.5.8 states 12 days.
10.  Question:  Per Spec Section 01010, paragraph 2.D, Electrical Work Details – DOE responsible for submitting preliminary Generation Interconnect Request to Southwest Power Pool.  Has this Generation Interconnect Request been submitted?  If not on what date is DOE planning on submitting the Generation Interconnect Request?  This information is important to the project’s overall schedule. 

Answer:  Generation Interconnect Request has not been submitted.  DOE will be submitting the request in October 2012.


11.  Question:  Per specification section 01200, paragraph 1.9 concrete can be purchased from independently owned on site batch plant.  Please provide contact information for the on-site service provider. 

Answer:  The government will not recommend/endorse any contractor to perform work.   
12.  Question:  Per Section L, page 10 a sample Modeling and Analysis Assessment Report should be provided at the Reading Room (www.doeal.gov/panwf). No such samples were found. Are these the same Wind Assessment Reports that are on the Project Website under Library - see URL: http://www.doeal.gov/panwf/Library.aspx  

Answer:  The Modeling and Analysis Assessment Report is incorrectly referenced.  This title is referring to two reports produced by NREL and INL.  Under the Library tab, the example you can use is found under the General Information tab.

13.  Question:  How does the Government anticipate handling potential Curtailment Requests from Grid Operators or the Utility, if any? 

Answer:  Utility curtailment requests go to the NNSA local utility representative and NNSA COR will notify the ESCO directly.
14.  Question:  How does the Government anticipate handling potential Curtailment Requests from Grid Operators or the Utility, if any? 

Answer:  Utility curtailment requests go to the NNSA local utility representative and NNSA COR will notify the ESCO directly.
15.  Question:  How fast will the Offer's system need to response to the Utility requirement for Power Factor adjustments?  

Answer:  No faster than 5 milliseconds (0.005 seconds) and no slower than 3 cycles (50 milliseconds /0.05 seconds)

16.  Question:  How will faults and alarm conditions at the south substation and wind turbines be remotely monitored by the Offerer? Reference Master Spec Div 1, Section 01010, Page 5 of 6 and Page 57 of 100 for Div 13710. 

Answer:  
Operator Interface:  The remote monitoring and control system shall be integrated to allow the power dispatch operators, via the master workstations at the remote facilities, to monitor and control Wind Farm status and record aggregate power output and wind turbine status from the Wind Farm system.

Control System Interface:  The wind turbine system shall be supplied with a standard fiberoptic, DSL, satellite or 56‑kbaud to 115kb (minimum) serial interface communications interface to link standard wind turbine control and monitoring functions with the existing remote monitoring/control system.  The wind turbine communications interface will be capable of driving control signals, from the final locations recommended for the wind turbines to the remote facility workstations.  The communications interface shall include all the standard software drivers, installation and operation documentation, and programming support necessary to allow easy integration directly with the operator’s workstations located at the remote workstations.  

17. Question:  Is Remote Monitoring of the south substation protective relays by the Offerer required? If so, what are the communication protocols for Offerers access?  

Answer:  Monitoring of substation protective relays is not required.

18.  Question:  Electric rates.  The prescribed spreadsheet model for calculating the value of the electric cost savings produced by the   wind farm per Amendment 003 results in a very low effective value (Cents per kWh) for the wind generated electricity.  Given that the Investment Tax Credit / Production Tax Credit will not apply here since the government will be the owner of the wind farm (and the credits may not be renewed beyond 2012 anyway), and given the lack of available REC revenue to the contractor (which is very small anyway) due to government ownership of the RECs, we fear that such a low effective electric rate renders this project not financially viable.  Other questions submitted to date have hinted at the same concern.  We would like to suggest two changes to the Amendment 003 model to make the value of the electric savings higher, and we believe more realistic.    

a.  Increase the defined value of the baseline electric costs.  The baseline electric costs have been prescribed at   $0.042/kWh ($2.950 million for 69,639,000 kWh/yr).  This is the lowest rate Pantex has paid in five years based on data provided with the RFP for the years 2006 through 2010.  It is almost 20% lower than the average electric rate Pantex paid over that five year period.  Please consider increasing the prescribed baseline electric rate to the historical five year average of $0.052/kWh, which would increase the baseline electric costs to $3.621 million.  

Answer:  The $/kWh will not be adjusted.  Please assume current $/kWh provided.  Please escalate current $/kWh to 2013 Total Base Cost (yr 0) value to $3,103,398($.0446/kWh).

b.  Decrease stipulated site average demand.  The Amendment 003 model stipulates the Contract Standby Capacity at 4,600 kW.  This is a reasonable proxy for the wind farm annual average kW output.  However, the model then stipulates the Plant (Pantex site) Avg Demand at 7,700 kW.  This implies that the site Peak Load would be (7,700 + 4,600) = 12,300 kW.  But the site peak load per the model is only 11,016 kW (July).  Please consider reducing the stipulated site Peak Load to 11,016 – 4,600 = 6,416 kW so that the model is consistent with the Xcel rate structure.  This will also slightly increase the value of the wind generated electric savings.  

Answer:  The Government has decided not to change the values provided.
   
19.  Question:  Preventive maintenance.  Please clarify the language in Attachment J-1 PWS Section C.7 – Preventive Maintenance of ECMs.  It is clear throughout the solicitation that Pantex intends the base ordering period for operations, maintenance, repair and replacement, and warranty services to be only five years.  The way Section C.7.1 currently reads, it contradicts the period of performance for operations and maintenance and repair and replacement activities as defined in the other related Sections.  We respectfully submit that in order to be consistent with the language and assumed intent of Sections C.6.1.1 and C.8.1, the language in Section C.7.1 should be modified to read as follows:  
“The Contractor shall be responsible for preventive maintenance of the installed ECM for the first five years beginning with ECM acceptance.  The next five years, years six (6) through ten (10), are option years and will be funded separately if exercised.”  --
Answer:  The language under C.7 is correct. The intent of paragraphs C.6 deals with the operation of the ECM.  The intent of paragraph C.7 deals with preventive maintenance of the ECM; and the intent of paragraph C.8 deals with the repair of the ECM.   
 20. Question Wind Farm General Specifications Attachment J-2.  Division 13 Specifications, Part 1 General, Work Description says:  “The wind generator systems for the wind farm supplied under this contract shall … supply a minimum contribution of approximately 8,425,000 kWh per year per each individual equivalent 2.0 MW wind turbine…” 
This specification would require that the 2.0 MW turbine operate at an unrealistically high net capacity factor of 48.1% [8,425,000 kWh/yr / (8,760 hrs/yr * 2,000 kW capacity)].  Besides dictating an unrealistically high net capacity factor, this requirement is unnecessary as each bidder has a clear self-interest in selecting the most productive turbine for this site.  Please remove this requirement from the General Specifications or reduce the kWh per year threshold considerably.  
Answer:  This table reflects gross energy generation based on manufacturer’s turbine power curves and wind distribution table provided.  This is not net capacity factor.
21. Question:  Shipping address; Please verify if the below street address identified for submittal of Past Performance Questionnaires is also the correct address for shipping proposal submittals via Federal Express. 
	Department of Energy
	NNSA Albuquerque Complex
	Contracts and Procurement Division (CPD), Construction Management Branch
	Pennsylvania & H Streets
	Building 388, Room 137B
	KAFB East
	Albuquerque, NM 87116

Answer:  Everything is correct.

22.   Question:  M&V and QC plan.  Section L, Page L-9 of 14, (4) Page Count Exceptions references an M&V Plan and a QC Plan (Section J attachments).  However, no further instruction is given regarding these two items.  Please clarify if these items are required as part of the submittal, and if so, in which volume they are to be submitted
Answer:  The M&V Plan and the Quality Control Plan are submittals.  Both documents are due with the proposal, they are not to be included in any volume.  
23.   Question:  Price information.  Section L, Page L-13 of 14, Volume IV – Pricing Proposal, General instructions.  “Contractual price information is not to be included in Volume I - Offer and Other Documents…”  However, instructions for Volume I – Offer and Other Documents (Section L, Page L-11 of 14) indicate the following: 
“(1)  Standard Form 33  (Solicitation, Offer, and Award).  The Standard Form 33 shall be fully executed by an authorized representative of the Offeror.  This form shall be used as the cover sheet of each copy of Volume I, Offer and Other Documents.  Offerors are instructed to fully complete Part I, Section B paragraphs pertaining to price.”  Please clarify instructions regarding in which volume(s) price information is to be included.

Answer: Volume I, Part I Section B of the SF 33 paragraphs; indicate the total price including a price for each option.  Volume IV is asking for the completed schedules, and other than certified cost and pricing data to support the pricing of the option CLINS.  

24.  Question:  Buy American or FTA designated countries.  The Solicitation Section I – FAR Contract Clauses, includes both 52.225-9 Buy American Act, and 52.225-11 Buy American Act Construction Materials Under Trade Agreements.  The later says that “Buy American Act restrictions are waived for designate country construction materials.”  Please confirm that the Solicitation will allow us to procure materials from Free Trade Agreement (FTA) designated countries.

Answer:  According to the clause, you will be allowed to procure materials from Free Trade Agreement (FTA) designated countries.
25. Question:  Environmental Permits.  Please provide update on status of the environmental permits.  
Answer:  A Finding of No Significant Issue (FONSI) was approved in July 2010.  
26.  Question:  Wind data for the Long-Term mast data set. 
a. Please explain what the “SigTheta” column means in the long-term mast dataset.
Answer:  The column in the tables (Wind Data 2005-2011 on site tower) titled “Sig Theta” is the standard deviation.
b. Please provide the sensor types used on the Long-Term mast as well as the sensor slopes and offsets used for converting the raw data for each sensor. 
Answer:  Manufactures information is not available for the sensors on this tower.
      c. Please provide the boom orientations of the sensors installed on the Long Term mast.  
Answer:  Long term tower is a triangular tower 3.5 ft on each side.  Anemometer booms extend approximately 6 ft out in the SW direction.
d.  For the two SecondWind masts, please provide any information regarding maintenance completed on these towers including whether the sensors had ever been replaced during the time of data recording.  If the sensors had been replaced, please provide the sensor slopes and offsets.  
Answer:  None of the equipment on these two towers has been replaced since original installation.   Orientations of these anemometers are at 10, 30 & 60 Meters @ 1120 & 2920 .
27. FAA Lights.  How many FAA lights are required on the towers? 
Answer:  One light per tower is required.

28. Question:  Solicitation Page 11, Construction Project Acceptance – 30 consecutive-day (uninterrupted) acceptance test period requirement: 

a.  Please better define “uninterrupted.”  Is there a time limit or severity of failure that would be considered an interruption?  Some concerns:
i. Wind is inherently an intermittent energy resource.  While the conditions at Pantex are favorable for wind generation, there is a strong likelihood that there may be periods of time during a 30-day window when the wind resource is insufficient to generate power.

Answer:  Turbine must be available (operable) to run for 30-days.  

ii. What level of failure is considered an interruption?  Is it just the turbine operation, or does it pertain to the monitoring and control systems (assuming these systems do not prevent power production or compromise safety)?  

Answer:  Any fault requiring an onsite visit from a technician.  Fault trips, nuisance alarms, and error codes will evaluated for severity and frequency by the COR.  

b. Because any power generated during the acceptance testing is effectively an accrued financial benefit to Pantex, regardless of the continuity of the test, will Pantex consider generated power as savings with respect to any guarantees and/or liquidated damages? 
Answer: The bidder may choose to include implementation period power  generation.

29. Question:  Solicitation Page 13, Liquidated Damages.  Please define the schedule used for determination of liquidated damages.  Is this schedule determined after contract award and design completion?  If the Government terminates the Contractor’s right to proceed, Contractor should have liquidated damage period extended accordingly insofar as the delay is not based on Contractor’s failure to perform. 
Answer:    According to clause 52.211-12, The LDs would be applied for the construction phase only.    The construction schedule the contractor submits will be used to evaluate contractor performance.   If the construction schedule is delayed, LDs may be accessed based on the formula in Clause 52.211-12 (0F005).

30. Question:  Solicitation Page 16, Submission of Invoices.  Will Pantex consider other Contractor invoicing frequencies other than annual where it might lower the project financed costs? 

Answer:  Annual in advance payment(s) will be made to the ESCO.  If Offeror has further suggestion for lowering financing costs please include in proposal.

31. Question:  Wind Farm Specifications 01010, 1.4 (B) – 21 calendar days for RFIs is a long time to respond.  Would Pantex consider 10 days? 

Answer:  RFI’s responses will be executed within 21 business days.

32. Question:  Wind Farm Specifications 01010, Electrical Work Details (p 5 of 6).  Three communications requirements are specified (SCADA, O&M, ACS/IDS).  The latter system is required to utilize a completely separate fiber bundle than other systems.  Some discussion during the site visit suggested that these communications links could be shared (i.e. either in the same fiber bundle, or multiplexed on the same fiber network).  Please clarify. 

Answer:  Offerors may include multiplexing in their design proposal.




33. Question:  Would the Government please clarify the number and type of copies to be submitted.  The RFP states, “The Offeror shall supply 2 copies of their proposal.   Each volume must be submitted as a separate file.  Multiple electronic files may be submitted for each volume.”  Is the Government requiring two (2) hardcopies and one (1) set of electronic files of all Volumes via CD or is it the Government’s intent that this solicitation response be an electronic submittal? 

Answer:   The Offeror shall supply 2 hard copies of their proposal. Should you choose to submit an electronic copy; please submit one (1) set of electronic files of all Volumes via CD.

34 Question:  RFP includes reference to an Executive Summary in the page count exceptions. Is the Government requiring an overall Executive Summary of the four Volumes, and if so, in which Volume should this be placed, or is this a reference to a an Executive Summary within each volume.  

Answer:  The Executive Summary is an overall depiction of your proposal.  One copy of the Executive Summary is only necessary and it may be put in front of Volume III.
35.  Question:  RFP states that samples of the Modeling and Assessment Report are available at www.doeal.gov/panwf. There does not appear to be a link on this webpage to the referenced sample document.  Could the Government please provide the document samples or an active URL link to such documents? 

Answer:  A Modeling and Assessment Report was incorrectly referenced and will not be provided

36. Question:  Could the government please clarify the submittal requirements for Factor 1.  It is understood that the offeror should complete the Attachment L-1 for each corporate experience project reference.  Factor 1 however, also requests that “Corporate Experience must include the following information on a separate sheet describing:   1) size, quantity and manufacturer of wind turbines installed on prior projects; 2)  experience in design, construction and Operations and Maintenance in the Wind Farm Industry and 3) experience and information concerning its subcontractor(s), teaming members or joint venture partners ...” What is meant by a separate sheet?  This requirement suggests information should be provided in addition to the Attachment L-1 forms to further discuss the offerors experience in addition to the specific project references. 

Answer:  The separate sheet means, another piece of paper that describes in detail 1-3 above.  

37. Question:  Measurement Tower Information.  Can Pantex provide documentation for the configuration of the measurement tower? Specifically:
Sensor boom length and orientation relative to true north
Tower width
             This information is required to determine shadowing/distortion affects which impact the accuracy/uncertainty of the data

Answer:  
· The two Skyserve, Secondwind towers - None of the equipment on these two towers has been replaced since original installation.   Orientations of these anemometers are at 10, 30 & 60 Meters @ 1120 & 2920 .
· Long term tower is a triangular tower 3.5 ft on each side.  Anemometer booms extend approximately 6 ft out in the SW direction.  Manufactures information is not available for the sensors on this tower.
· The two Skyserve, Secondwind towers – Height 0 to 30 Meters is 219mm OD, 30M to 60M is 152mm OD.

38. Question:  This section asks for a Management plan to be delivered with the proposal and references Attach 2, Div 1 1200 1.5.  This reference is titled “Coordination meetings”.  Is there a specific form or format for the Management Plan, or is the Factor 4 section of Volume 3 the deliverable? 
Answer:   The Construction Management Plan outlined in DIV-1200, Section 1.4, will be a contract submittal due w/in 30 days of award.   The Management Plan referenced on pg 21 of PWS will follow the format outlined as provided Volume III of Section L and will be provided with the proposal.

39.  Question:  After studying the Xcel Standby tariff No. IV-181 at some length, we have the following questions about the energy cost savings calculations Pantex provided on the Amendment #3 PREP Tariff Model spreadsheet. 

a. The Standby Tariff is intended to work in tandem with the Large General Service-Transmission (LGS-T) Tariff to provide Capacity and Energy to Customer. Standby replaces Customer’s Generation during outages of Customer’s generation equipment, up to agreed Contract Standby Capacity. LGS-T supplies “Supplemental” Demand and energy above Customer’s Generation/Standby Capacity up to Customer’s Total Load. Standby Demand rates are lower than LGS-T Demand rates. However, in case of “Excess Usage” of the Standby Tariff, the demand rates are same as LGS-T. Energy and Fuel charges also are same in both tariffs 

b.  A Standby tariff Usage Hour is defined as any hour during which Customer’s Generation Capacity is less than 60% of the Contract Standby Capacity for at least 30 minutes (excluding scheduled maintenance hours or periods when customer power usage is very low.) Tariff specifies that Xcel will have access to metering of Customer’s generation. Standby tariff allows 99 usage hours per month. If this number of Usage Hours is exceeded, the applicable Standby Demand charge is the Excess Usage charge, which is same as LGS-T Demand rate.


 1) Does Pantex agree with the interpretation of the Standby tariff stated above? Has Xcel informed Pantex of any special interpretation of the Standby tariff to apply to the intermittent generating characteristics of wind projects? Based on this interpretation, can Pantex or Bidders modify the Amendment 3 PREP Tariff Spreadsheet to reflect charges under LGS-T tariff as well as Standby tariff?  

Answer:  Pantex does agree with the interpretation of Standby tariff.  No special interpretation from Xcel has been issued.  Offorer’s may modify the spreadsheet to reflect chosen monthly tariff based on the Offorer’s analysis.  

2)  In the Pantex example, the proposed Standby capacity is 4,600 kW. The formula suggested  in Cell D32 indicates this is “Peak Load - Avg. Plant Load.” This is consistent with the maximum allowed Contract Standby Capacity defined in the Standby tariff. Please provide assumptions used in this calc.  

2011 Actual Peak Demand = 12,300 KW
2011 Actual Average Demand = 7,700 KW

3)  For purposes of Excess Usage calc, 60% of 4,600 kW Contract Standby Demand would be 2,760 kW. Assuming 5 Wind Turbines, this would be about 550 kW per WT. Such output would require at least 5-6 meter per second wind speed. This means that if there are as few as 100 30-minute periods each month of wind speed below 5-6 m/s, the Excess Usage provision would be triggered and the standby Demand charges would revert to the same as the LGS-T demand rates. Would Pantex agree that it is unlikely that the standby rates will be applicable?

Answer:  We do not have models to determine this.

4)   “Excess Usage” demand is stated as 7,700 kW and the energy is calculated as the difference between the Pantex stipulated monthly electricity consumption and the wind farm generation. Please explain how the 7,700 kW Excess Usage demand is calculated. Does Pantex agree this really should be Supplemental Demand charged under LGS-T 

Answer:  See calculation in b.2 above.  7,700 kW is the Supplemental Demand charged under the LGS-T.

40. Question:  The CLIN are requesting pricing for warranty, operations and maintenance for the Wind Energy System.  Does the government want to include all of the equipment provided under the services for warranty, or just the equipment located on the east side of the Gang Operated Air Switch?  Or, does the government want to include all of the equipment provided for operations and maintenance, or just the equipment located on the east side of the Gang Operated Air Switch?

Answer:   All equipment will be covered by the warranty and all equipment will be covered by ESCO O&M for the first 5 yrs beginning at project acceptance.

41. Question:  Currently the solicitation defines maximum rotor diameter of 101m, can we use 110 m rotor? 
Answer:    Yes. A larger rotor on a shorter tower is still acceptable, as long as it meets our other performance criteria and keeps us out of issues with FAA.  

42.  Question:  Cross-reference matrix.  Section L, Page L-10 of 14, “(6)  Cross-reference Matrix.  The Offeror shall complete the cross-reference matrix attached to this section …”  There is no cross-reference matrix attached to section L or to the PWS.  Please provide the cross-reference matrix format.
Answer: Cross-reference Matrix.  The Offeror shall provide a cross-reference matrix to correlate its proposal by page and paragraph number to the Performance Work Statement (PWS).  The Cross-reference Matrix shall be inserted in the offeror's proposal immediately following the Table of Contents for Volume II.  This change will be issued as an amendment. 

43. Question:  Does the RFP require a class II wind turbine generator, or can a class III machine that is assessed suitable (via a wind engineering suitability report for the specific characteristics of the Pantex site) be deemed acceptable?  
Answer:  The RFP does not require a class II wind turbine generator.  Any class of turbine is acceptable as long as a wind suitability report for the specific characteristics of the Pantex site is provided and deemed reasonable and the wind turbine meets base energy production requirements outlined in the specification.






